
County Hall
Rhadyr

Usk
NP15 1GA

Friday, 8 June 2018

Notice of meeting 

Standards Committee
Monday, 18th June, 2018 at 10.00 am,
Council Chamber - Council Chamber

AGENDA

Item No Item Pages

1.  Election of Chair

2.  Appointment of Vice-Chair

3.  Apologies for absence

4.  Declarations of interest

5.  Minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4

6.  Annual Complaints Report 2016/17 5 - 24

7.  Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 25 - 48

8.  Any other business

8.1.  Standards Conference 14/09/18

8.2.  APW Hearing 19/07/18

9.  To confirm the date of next meeting as 17th September 2018 at 10am

Paul Matthews
Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS:

County Councillors: D. Evans
J.Pratt
S. Woodhouse
T. Auld  (Independent Representative)
R. Stow (Independent Representative)
G. Preece (Independent Representative)
R. McGonigle (Independent Representative)
I. Cameron (Community Representative)

Public Information
Access to paper copies of agendas and reports
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public 
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please 
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard 
copy of this agenda. 

Watch this meeting online
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC.

Welsh Language
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or 
English.  We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your 
needs.

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council

Our purpose

Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities

Objectives we are working towards

 Giving people the best possible start in life
 A thriving and connected county
 Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment
 Lifelong well-being
 A future focused council

Our Values

Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that 
affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do 
something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t 
answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help – building trust and 
engagement is a key foundation.

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not 
seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and 
consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining 
why we did what we did. 

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and 
efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new 
ways of working.

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved 
so we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers, 
but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the 
things that most positively impact our people and places.





MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Standards Committee held 
on Monday, 19th March, 2018 at 10.00 am 

 
 
 
 

PRESENT:  
 

County Councillors: D. Evans, J.Pratt   
 
R. McGonigle (Independent Representative) 
T. Auld (Independent Representative – Chair) 
R. Stow (Independent Representative) 
 

 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Robert Tranter Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
Nicola Perry Senior Democracy Officer 

 

APOLOGIES: 
 

Councillors S. Woodhouse, G. Preece (Independent Representative), 
M. Sutton (Independent Representative) and I. Cameron (Community Representative) 

 
 
1. Declarations of interest  

 
None. 
 
2. To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 27th November 2017  

 
The minutes of the meeting of Standards Committee held on 27th November 2017 were 
approved and signed by the Chair. 
 
In doing so, the Monitoring Officer informed Members that the updated constitution had been 
approved by Council. 
 
 
 
3. DRAFT GUIDANCE FROM THE WLGA ON PERSONAL SAFETY FOR MEMBERS AND 

HANDLING ONLINE ABUSE  
 

The Monitoring Officer presented a report for Standards Committee to note two pieces of 
draft guidance from the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) on personal 
safety and handling online abuse and to provide comment. 
 
Councillor Pratt commended the report and suggested that an all Members seminar on 
safety would be useful. 
 
Members discussed the use of social media and recognised the importance of using 
own judgement to judge situations.  It was added that the Council must send the 
message that any kind of abuse will not be tolerated. 
 
It was again agreed that a Members seminar providing guidance around online abuse 
would be useful. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Standards Committee held 
on Monday, 19th March, 2018 at 10.00 am 

 

The Committee resolved to note the WLGA draft guidance documents on personal 
safety and handling online abuse. 
 
4. GUIDANCE TO MEMBERS SERVING ON OUTSIDE BODIES  

 

Members received a report providing guidance to members serving on outside bodies. 
 
It was confirmed that the guidance would be available to Town and Community 
Councils.  In response to a question regarding responsibility Members were advised to 
consider what parent body they acting on behalf of.  If ever there was any doubt in 
these matters Members should contact the Monitoring Officer. 
 
In terms of appointments to Outside Bodies, this was a decision made by Council at the 
AGM.  However, some Outside Bodies may require that the Leader or Cabinet 
Members be appointed. 
 
Clarification was sought around the SRS Business Solutions and SRS Public. 
 
In response to a question surrounding political issues, we heard that it is a decision for 
Council and the leading party can make the appointments.  For example the Gwent 
Police and Crime Panel has both a Conservative and Labour Member, as it covers the 
whole of Gwent, which needed to be factored in. The benefits of cross party working 
were recognised. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the guidance to members serving on outside bodies. 
 
 
 
5. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES 2016/17  

 

The Committee were asked to consider the annual report of the Adjudication Panel for 
Wales (APW) for 2016 -2017. 
 
With regards to the case summaries, it was suggested that we write back to APW, and 
ask that in the interest of transparency they disclose names of the Councillors involved. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the contents of the annual report of the APW. 
 
6. To note the date of next meeting as Monday 18th June 2018 at 10.00am (TBC)  

 
We noted the date of the next meeting. 
 
We agreed that a Complaints report will be added to the next agenda. 
 
For information, there will be a Standards Conference held at Aberystwyth University on 14th 
September 2018. 
 
Members requested sight of agenda items a month in advance of agenda despatch. 
 
 
 

Page 2



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Standards Committee held 
on Monday, 19th March, 2018 at 10.00 am 

 
 

The meeting ended at 11.05 am  
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



1. PURPOSE:

To provide Standards committee with information on the number and types of 
complaints, comments and compliments received and dealt with from 1 April 2016 until 
31 March 2017.

The report also summarises the number of Freedom of Information Act (FOI) requests 
received by the Council during this period.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

To note the contents of the report.

3. KEY ISSUES:

3.1 Our Whole Authority Complaints and Compliments policy and procedure follows the Model 
that the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales asked each local authority to adopt in 
2011.

3.2 The procedure has two stages; the informal stage and the formal stage.  

The informal stage aims to resolve the complaint locally wherever possible by means of 
discussion and problem solving. If it is not possible to resolve the concern, the matter is 
escalated to the formal investigation stage.  

3.3 Where initial discussions have not achieved a resolution, complainants have the right to 
make a formal complaint.  Investigations are undertaken and the complainant receives a 
full response detailing findings, conclusions and any recommendations made. This is the 
end of the internal process.  

3.4 Complainants can contact the Public Services Ombudsman if they still remain dissatisfied.

The Ombudsman provides an external independent service to consider complaints about 
all local authority services. The Ombudsman is concerned with maladministration causing 

SUBJECT: WHOLE AUTHORITY CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT

MEETING: Standards Committee
DATE: 18 June 2018
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All Wards

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



injustice and will normally require complainants to have used their local council’s 
procedures before accepting a complaint for investigation.

4. REASONS:

To ensure that Members are aware of the types of complaints, comments and 
compliments received and dealt with.  Also, to note the FOI statistics and the continuing 
growth in FOI requests.

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

Officer time in carrying out formal investigations.

6. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:

No implications have been identified in respect of this proposal.

7. CONSULTEES:
Senior Leadership team

8. AUTHOR:
Annette Evans, Customer Relations Manager
Tel: 01633 644647
Email:  annetteevans@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 6



1 

 

Whole Authority Customer Feedback and FOIA Statistics

April 2016 – March 2017

116

150

90

107

155

109

85

153

168

Complaints Comments Compliments 
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017

Complaints 

    85 Complaints received

Stage 1 - Informal Resolution

   79 Complaints started

Stage 2 – Formal Investigation

 10 Complaints received 
 11 Complaints started 

- 1 complaint proceeded straight to stage 2 (from 2015-2016
- 1 complaint escalated straight to stage 2 (from 2015-2016)
- 4 escalated to stage 2
- 5 proceeded straight to Stage 2 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 

Of the above 10 formal complaints received, 1 complainant went directly to the 
PSOW.  He referred it back to us for subsequent investigation 

5 complainants progressed their complaint to the PSOW after formal investigation.   
The PSOW did not investigate their complaints. 

Page 7



2 

Complaints:  Examples of most common aspects of services complained about:

 Waste & Recycling

Continued missed bin and food waste collections; garden waste not collected; 
issues with garden waste permits; poor service around household waste 
collections; hedges not being cut; issues with ownership responsibility of 
grass area; issues with refuse lorry and grassed area / footpaths; staff 
conduct; lack of response and not returning calls

 Highways

Lack of maintenance of the hedges and verges along the length of the lane; 
lack of response and communication on hedge / tree problems; lack of 
responses on reported highway issues; issues with naming of property; issues 
about Council’s handling of highway matters; failure to respond within 
timescales; lack of maintenance and cleaning of drains in the vicinity of 
complainant’s property; 

 Passenger Transport

Issues with bus timetables and bus driving; poor school transport; denied 
school transport; feels that staff have mishandled information regarding 
allegations made; issues regarding decision to re-tender contract; issues 
regarding service users being transported on bus; issues about Grass Roots 
policy regarding clients using wheelchairs; incorrect information in bus stop

 Development Control

The manner in which the planning application has been dealt with; issues with  
site enforcement; the apparent lack of consultation, the action and response 
resulting from original enquiries; the way in which planning application has 
been handled; staff conduct; fencing on site not removed

 Estates

Issues regarding unregulated possession and development of council land;  
allegations that officers of the council have misled Elected members 
concerning the negotiations that have taken place in relation to the occupation 
of ***; staff conduct; issue regarding unanswered emails;

 Leisure

Incorrect swimming times shown on website; waiting time at the gym for 
equipment; enforcement issues regarding blue badge parking

 Others

Page 8



3 

 General lack of response from various sections of the Council either by 
phone or email 

 Staff conduct
 Events – issues with noise; lack of notification and difficulties with 

residential parking, poor communication. 
 Issues with the public toilets in Abergavenny. 
 Footpath blocked which has been raised previously with no action 

taken.
 Issues with Library service and ordering of books. 
 Issues about the way in which complainant was treated.
 Customers confidential business discussed in public area and handling 

of personal information; 
 Issues regarding Elections – lack of communication.
 Issues about not being able to vote; 
 Car parking at Woodstock Way Caldicot 

Stage 2 Formal Investigations concerned matters relating to:

 Maintenance of land around resident’s property. Unhappy with the work 
carried out to the hedge in front of their property and that the Council had 
breached their confidentiality to a neighbour who confronted them about 
the works.

There were five elements to the complaint which after investigation were 
deemed to be unfounded.

 Issues regarding the conduct and outcome of a Professional Strategy 
meeting.

There were a number of elements to this complaints, 6 of them were not 
found, one was found and one partially found.

 Issues regarding the termination of a farm business tenancy.

There were two elements to this complaint, one was found and the other 
not found.

 Issues regarding alleged lack of communication and negotiation about 
County Farms strategy and not renewing leases.

It was concluded that the complaint was not found.

 The lack of actions taken after employment ended with the Council.

Page 9



4 

It was concluded that the complaint was found.

 Regarding a forthcoming Election, numerous phone calls, voice 
messages, and email communication with the Authority was not 
responded to by officers in line with the Authority’s Customer Care 
Standards.

There were three elements to the complaint, two were found and one was 
not found.

 Alleged failure to act on identified drainage issues after deeming it urgent 
in a site meeting resulting in further flooding to the property, which was 
preventable.

There were a number of elements to this complaint, six of which were 
found and four were not.

 That historic kerbs in St Johns Street Monmouth were removed and 
replaced by modern equivalents. This was done in a conservation area.

There were a number of elements to the complaint and they were not 
found.

 The manner in which a Planning Application was dealt with by the 
Authority. The complainant considered that there was maladministration of 
the application leading to injustice in the way the application had been 
processed.

The complaint was not found.

 Complainant felt his amenity had been unacceptably harmed as a result of 
planning permission being granted.  Complainant felt that he could be 
overlooked in his rear garden which impacted on his privacy.  

The complaint was not found.

Note: Social Services complaints are dealt with separately under the Social Services 
complaints procedure. 63 complaints were received, 81 comments and 118 
compliments were made about the service. 

Page 10



5 

     Distribution YTD 

To
ta

l

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 S
er

vi
ce

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Is
su

e

Da
ta

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

De
ci

sio
n 

De
la

y

Di
sc

rim
in

at
io

n

M
em

be
r C

on
du

ct

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 W

or
ks

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 S
er

vi
ce

Re
su

lt 
of

 P
ro

ce
ss

Se
rv

ic
e 

De
la

ye
d

Se
rv

ic
e 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
d

Se
rv

ic
e 

Re
m

ov
ed

St
af

f C
on

du
ct

Ti
m

es
ca

le
s

Overall Total 85 1 6 1 1 59 1 5 2 1 8

Total Legal 1 1
People Services 1 1
Revenues, Systems & Exchequer 2 2

Total Resources 2 3
Community Hubs 4 2 2
Contact Centre 2 1 1
Local Democracy 4 4
Total Governance, Engagement 
and Improvement 10 7 3
Highways 10 9 1
Operations Not Allocated 1 1
Property Services 1 1
Passenger Transport 9 1 4 1 2 1
Waste and Street Services 25 1 1 21 1 1

Total Operations 46 1 1 1 35 1 3 1 1 2

Community Education Service 1 1

Countryside 3 3
Development Management 7 5 2
Estates / sustainability 5 3 2
Housing and Communities 1 1
Leisure 3 1 1 1
Tourism, Festival & Events 2 2

Total Enterprise 22 4 12 2 1 3

P
age 11



6 

Animal Health and Trading 
Standards 1 1

Total Social Care and Health 1 1

Finance 1 1

Future Schools Team 1 1

Total CYP 2 1 1

P
age 12



7 

Comments

  153 Comments

Total 153
Resources 19
Registrars 12
Revenues, Systems & Exchequer 7
Governance, Engagement and 
Improvement

18

Community Hubs 14
Contact Centre 3
Not allocated 1
Operations 76
Highways 25
Not allocated 1
Passenger Transport Unit 10
Property Services 1
Transport 7
Waste and Street Services 32
Enterprise 22
Attractions – Caldicot Castle 1
Building Control 9
Countryside 2
Development Management 2
Estates and Sustainability 1
Housing 2
Leisure 4
Tourism, Festival & Events 1
Social Care and Health 4
Animal Health and Trading Standards 2
Environmental Health – Public Health 2
Children & Young People 2
Access Unit 1
Future Schools Team 1
External 10
Not allocated to any SIP 1
General – covers all of MCC 1

A selection of comments received concerned: 

 Registrars section: they send out a questionnaire after customers have 
received a service from them, therefore we do receive a substantial amount of  
comments and compliments about that service.  A selection of them are 
below:

 The Old Parlour (Registrar office in Usk) - Not an easy venue to find as the 
postcode takes you to the square in the centre of Usk. No signposts to 
help you find it.

Page 13



8 

 Quite difficult at times to get in contact with the Registry office. 
 Customers were not told about the ceremony fee prior to the ceremony, 
 Very convenient to have the office in Abergavenny (Nevill Hall)
 Registrar was late arriving, so had to wait outside longer. Felt they were 

rushed through. The songs chosen after the ceremony were cut short.
 Office is very small and not very welcoming. A more friendly environment 

would be nicer to conduct difficult conversations in. Waiting room could 
have more comfortable chairs and general information about what to do 
when someone has died.

Below are another selection of comments received about the Council:

 State of the graves in cemetery
 Council Tax issues: 

o Heard nothing regarding council tax arrears.
o Two separate forms to be filled in with regard benefits - why can’t it all 

be incorporated in the same form - causes undue delays and anxiety.
o Issues with on-line and phone services.
o No information on website concerning council tax bills/bands/areas
o Given conflicting information which has led to them acting on incorrect 

advice from department.
 Development Control:

o Would like to be able to address planners without feeling like they're 
walking on "egg shells”. 

o Feel the pre application planning advice is too expensive.
o Understands the Planners are under resourced and over worked but 

from a commercial perspective this kills business. They need to change 
their perception and become more business sensed. No issues with 
Building Control, but must have an integrated approach.

 Website:
o Interactive form on the web is not user friendly 
o Issues with registering for e billing

 The coastal path from Sudbrook to Black Rock and Sudbrook to the second 
Severn crossing is seriously overgrown. 

 Overgrown brambles and nettles on the footpath between Chapel Road and 
Pen y pound are extremely dangerous.  It is almost impossible to walk the 
path.

 Hard to obtain information re: homelessness issues
 Leisure:

o Abergavenny Leisure Centre - lack of cleanliness in the female 
changing room and toilets. General lack of cleanliness is very 
noticeable and very off-putting.

o System put in place re: tickets being issued for leisure facilities - users 
queuing in the cold/rain although they have paid via direct debit.

 Lack of communication around the bike race. The volunteers who were used 
to put up the barriers were very rude to tourists.

Page 14



9 

 Children not receiving lunch time meals at school that they pre-ordered as 
either school has run out of the ordered food or other children have changed 
their mind and decided to have the food that others have ordered. 

 Parking 
o Received a parking penalty charge notice but already paid the over 

stay fee.
o Lack of communication regarding appeal for parking fine.
o Unhappy with staff attitude.
o Would like to know why the ticket wasn't given in accordance to the 

Welsh Language Scheme 
o Rubbish blowing across Fairfield car park into garden. 

 Contact Centre 
o Was put on hold and held for over 5 minutes.
o Issues with the process and forms for a blue badge
o Issues with bus pass, requesting things that are not needed to support 

application and when supplying it, asking for something else.
 Operations

o Tarmac has been laid on Fairfield Road, Bulwark, Chepstow but it has 
not been flattened down; Lane hasn't been fully resurfaced 

o Vehicle used for cleaning drains has dropped oil on the road at each 
location where the drains were cleaned. This oil will find its way into the 
Llangwm Brook, the Olway and the River Usk.

o Called the OSS numerous times and reported that a significant number 
of road gullies in Pen y Pound and the access road to the Leisure 
Centre are completely blocked. The consequence is that, at times of 
heavy rainfall, the road floods and flood water gets carried down to the 
town centre. Furthermore a great deal of detritus is swept into Pen y 
Pound Court.

o Street lights not working / Street lamp top replaced with modern one 
but has not worked since it was installed.  A fall occurred due to no 
lighting outside property in St Helens Road

o Overgrown grass / hedges / bushes 
o Grit box situated on property. Wants it removed from property and 

asked that someone claims responsibility for the box. Lack of gritting.
o Road safety issues for eg:  Possibility of some warning signs, in some 

way slow the traffic at the bottom of Common Road in Mitchel Troy to 
protect school children and pets. 30mph signs, speed bumps.

o When will the road be completed - between St Arvans and Tintern
o Roads / lanes / paths / potholes in disrepair and rubbish strewn.  

Damage caused to vehicles. 
o Temporary traffic signals not working and causing gridlock. 
o Transport
o Bus stop displaying out-of-date times for 63, 65 & 69 buses
o Children not allowed on school bus with no bus pass.
o Issues concerning drop off and pick up points.
o The service is either running five minutes or so early, or

Page 15



10 

the timetable details published on the Monmouthshire Council website 
are incorrect.

o Still waiting for a pass to be sent - grass routes.
o No 3 bus from Brynmawr, that goes into Clydach and on to Gilwern did 

not turn up at 1:20pm as scheduled. 
o Transport to school unreliable
o Received invoice for post 16 transport, however pupil was not able to 

use the school bus for one month therefore incurring charges catching 
the Newport transport bus 

Compliments
  168 Compliments

Total 168
Resources 31
Customer Relations 1
Emergency Planning 2
Registrars 28
Governance, Engagement and 
Improvement

15

Community Hubs 13
Contact Centre 2
Operations 41
Highways 31
Passenger Transport Unit 1
Property Services 1
Transport 4
Waste and Street Services 4
Enterprise 69
Building Control 49
Development Management 9
Housing 2
Leisure 1
Monmouthshire Youth Service 6
Not allocated 1
Tourism, Festival & Events 1
Social Care and Health 7
Animal Health and Trading Standards 2
Environmental Health – Public Health 4
Environmental Health – Commercial 1
Not allocated to any SIP 4
General – covers all MCC 1

A selection of compliments received: 

A range of compliments about the whole of the Council was received – staff thanked 
for their professionalism, their quick responses, their efficiency and helpful service.

Some examples:

Page 16



11 

 Registrars: many compliments about staff being helpful and courteous at 
ceremonies. Everything was professional.

 Building Control they send out a questionnaire after providing a service and 
therefore a large number of compliments received about their advice given and 
efficient service

 Compliments about Waste/Refuse service  – prompt response in putting this right 
and helping to get queries sorted.

 Community Hubs: - compliments about helpful, welcoming and accommodating 
staff 

 Development Control: Commending staff on their excellent customer service, 
being helpful, patient and efficient. Taking the time to meet with customers.

 Youth Service: Thank you’s to staff from young people for organising events and 
general support

 Reception: Thanks for fantastic, friendly welcome at County Hall. 
 Parking: Thanks for helpfulness; visitors to Monmouthshire commented on the 

reasonable pay and display charge and reasonable overstay charges;
 Operations: impressed with wild flowers on dull verges; thanks for cleansing 

streets; thanks for cutting grass / hedges

 Response Timescales

Our policy for responding to complaints at stage 1 is 10 working days and for stage 
2 formal investigation is 20 working days plus a further 10 working days for Heads 
of Service to respond to the report’s findings.

2015/16 2016/17Whole Authority
Timescales Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 1 Stage 2

Up to 10 working days 78 0 62 0
11 – 25 working days 18 1 14 4

25+ working days 7 5 3 7
Total 103 6 79 11

Requests for service

These are recorded and acted upon.

Total 18
Operations 13
Highways 6
Waste and Street Services 7
Social Care and Health 2
Environmental Health – Public Health 2
External 3

Page 17



12 

Analysis of Complaints / Comments

Year Stage 1 
complaints

Stage 2 
complaints

Comments Compliments

2016-17 79 11 153 168
2015-16 103 6 155 109
2014-15 100 25 150 90
2013-14 134 16 172 34
2012-13 106 18 83 50

Service improvements 

Complaints are generally resolved on an individual basis.  Most formal investigation 
reports make recommendations for improvements to processes.  These are followed 
up to ensure the recommendations are addressed. 

Here are some examples where recommendations have been made for changes to 
practices / processes / procedures, as a result of people making complaints. 

Communications Issues

 Apologies given where appropriate
 Being mindful of confidentiality issues
 All conversations with tenant farmers in future in relation to terminating 

tenancies be minuted in order to provide evidence of thorough dialogue 
between all parties.

 The Council considers proper reference to the Gunning Principles when 
entering into any period of formal consultation.

 New standard letter introduced to accompany P45 forms / systems and 
procedures reviewed for termination forms

 Reminders circulated about the Authority’s Customer Care Standards to 
ensure that response times for customers are adhered to.

 Consideration for alternative plans to be put in place in place to deal with 
potential high volume customer demands during election periods 

 The Electoral Section consider alternative communication methods, providing 
key cut off dates and signposting customers to the Authority’s web pages 
where important information can be stored regarding deadlines and where 
polling station information can be found.

 Officers be reminded of the importance of providing information to 
stakeholders and those affected by projects undertaken by the Authority

 Where reasonably practicable greater transparency and clear communication 
in the process is available to residents in regards to the audit trail of 
correspondence within the planning process, with specific reference to 
ensuring that, where a proposal is altered, there is written clarification of this 
from the applicant, available for public view, or the application form itself is 
updated and published.

Page 18



13 

 Where residents enter into a Stage 1 investigation with the Authority, the 
appointed investigating officer with the specialist knowledge relating to the 
area of that complaint make every reasonable effort to meet with the 
resident/citizen lodging the complaint as part of the process and not relying on 
an audit trail of communications. This could add a level of clarity between the 
individual and authority.

Highways 

 Explore the feasibility of more litter bins for specific places.
 Contact the Town Council making them aware of requests for more dog waste 

bins
 Planting of mature trees for screen purposes
 A goodwill recompense provided as suggested by the Public Service 

Ombudsman for Wales for lack of timely and accurate responses regarding a 
matter that took a lengthy time for action to be taken.

Commentary

We strive to have customer services at the heart of everything we do.  There are 
times however when we will not always get things right and we fall short of the 
standard of service we want to deliver.

When customers are unhappy with an aspect of service we have provided, they want 
to be heard, they want the issue dealt with quickly and for the solution to be effective.  
In handling complaints from customers we aim to be customer and outcome focused, 
to make it easier for people to let us know they are unhappy and for us to inform 
them what we are doing to resolve their issues

The number of complaints dealt with under the Whole Authority complaints 
procedure have gone down slightly this year. However, stage 2 complaints have 
increased slightly; we dealt with 11 formal complaints whereas the previous year we 
dealt with 6 formal complaints.   Out of the 11 complaints received, 5 of them wanted 
to proceed directly to stage 2 and a formal investigation undertaken without trying to 
find an informal resolution to their problems.  

On a positive note, compliments rose significantly, generally because people were 
grateful that we dealt with matters quickly.

We still receive a fair number of enquiries about issues across the Authority and 
earlier intervention and staff engaging directly with customers solves problems 
straight away, reducing the level of complaints received.

Enquiries are contacts made by potential complainants asking about the service 
provided.  Where appropriate we try to resolve the problem at an enquiry stage 
without taking the matter forward as a formal complaint.

Page 19



14 

Customer feedback also allows us to continue to inform and improve the way we 
handle complaints.

Annette Evans, Customer Relations Manager

July 2017

Page 20



15 

Freedom of Information and Environmental Information Regulations

Activity Report 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Requests received:   1045 1061

Requests closed:   1055 1057

Requests closed on time:    97% 98%

Requests under FoI and EIR are not segregated, and figures include both.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 YTD

Resources 116 119 124 177 536

Legal 0 0 1 0 1

Enterprise 14 22 22 15 73

Operations 32 30 31 35 128
Governance, Engagement & 
Improvement 10 13 9 8 40

Social Care & Health 37 37 54 53 181

Children & Young People 18 21 23 24 86

227 242 264 312 1045

Note:  Distribution by Department is not precise due to the cross-functional nature of 
many requests.  Department headings were those in use for most of the year.

Most common sources (stated or interpreted)

Main Sources of FoI Requests 2015/16 2016/17
Commercial 39% 41%
Press – not local paper 17% 22%
Campaigner 15% 13%
Political researcher 10% 9%
Local resident 10% 8%
Press - local paper 2% 0%
All others 7% 7%

Page 21



16 

Most common subjects (broad categorisation)

Main subject categories of FoI Requests 2015/16 2016/17
Social care 11% 12%
Council Tax/NNDR 10% 10%
Procurement/Contracts 9% 6%
HR and Staffing 8% 5%
Educational Matters 7% 9%
Highways 7% 4%
Public Health 5% 5%
Processes and Services 5% 9%
Intestate Deaths and Public Health Funerals 5% 3%
Housing 4% 4%
Assets and Equipment 4% 5%
Financial Information 3% 2%
Planning 3% 3%
IT and Software 3% 4%
Trading Standards and Animal Health 3% 2%
Structures/Contacts 0% 3%
Licensing 0% 2%
Waste and Recycling 0% 2%
Members and Electoral Matters 0% 2%
All others 13% 6%

Target for percentage closed in 20 Working Days

A target of 90% has been retained.

Trends over time

The number of requests received has grown every year since FoI came into force on 
1st January 2005.  This is common to the public sector in general and is not 
Monmouthshire specific.  Up to the end of 2016-17, the Council has received 7259 
requests.

The number of requests received by Monmouthshire in each financial year is as 
follows:

2004-05 (3 months only) 31

2005-06 135

2006-07 118 (believed that some records are missing)

2007-08 172

2008-09 305

2009-10 421

2010-11 609

Page 22



17 

2011-12 662

2012-13 780

2013-14 918

2014-15 1002

2015-16 1061

2016-17 1045

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Monmouthshire CC

Annual Governance Statement 2017-18 - DRAFT

April 2018 

Executive Summary

The Statement itself demonstrates that Monmouthshire has governance arrangements in place to meet the 
challenges of the governance principles and that a review has been undertaken to assess the effectiveness 
of those arrangements.  We have demonstrated that in most areas we have effective governance 
arrangements in place which are continually improving such as:

 a comprehensive Scrutiny Service Plan;
 evaluating the effectiveness of Safeguarding;
 calling managers into Audit Committee;
 MCC’s model of engagement in understanding its communities’ views. 

It is also recognised that there is further work to do.  Progress against the 2016/17 action plan is shown at 
Appendix 1.  The main areas for improvement in 2017/18 identified by the Council are:

 continue to deliver awareness raising sessions on the importance of compliance with Contract 
Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules;

 Improve the clarity of reports that members receive to ensure  they have access to appropriate 
and timely information 

 Adopt a more planned, risk-assessed approach to partnership and collaborative working to 
make better use of resources.

An action plan to address areas for improvement is shown at Appendix 2.

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 This Statement has been prepared in accordance with guidance produced by the Chartered Institute   
of Public Finance and Accountancy (C.I.P.F.A.) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
and Senior Managers (S.O.L.A.C.E.), the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework 2016’ and Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for Welsh 
Authorities 2016’.  It embraces the elements of internal financial control required by the ‘Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom’.  

2 The Statement itself demonstrates that Monmouthshire has governance arrangements in place to 
meet the challenges of the governance principles and that a review has been undertaken to assess 
the effectiveness of those arrangements.  We have demonstrated that in most areas we have effective 
governance arrangements in place which are continually improving, but also recognise that there is 
further work to do.  Progress against the 2016/17 action plan is shown at Appendix 1.  The main areas 
for improvement in 2017/18 identified by the Council are shown at paragraph 81 and an action plan to 
address known gaps is shown at Appendix 2.

Scope of Responsibility

3 Monmouthshire County Council (the Council) (MCC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a 
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement 
in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness.  This has been updated in recent years through the Wales Programme for 
Improvement 2005 and even more recently through the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 to 
encompass responsibility for securing continuous improvement based on the needs of and in 
engagement with communities. Further changes to national frameworks are anticipated as a result of 
Welsh Government’s White Paper which is consulting on proposals to repeal the 2009 Measure.

4 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

5 The Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the C.I.P.F.A. / 
S.O.L.A.C.E. Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’, was approved by 
Council in July 2011; the Code was revised and updated in May 2014.  This will need to be revised in 
accordance with the 2016 Framework and Guidance.  A copy of the previous code is available from 
the Chief Internal Auditor. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the revised 
Framework and Guidance (2016) and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 
Regulations 2014.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

6 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which 
the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and 
leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its population outcomes, 
priorities and objectives and to consider whether those objectives have met the outcomes and led to 
the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

7 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and 
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the Council’s policies, outcomes and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically. Page 26



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

8 The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 
up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

The Governance Framework

9 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance will be revised in line with the following principles:

Overarching requirements for acting in the public interest:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 
the rule of law

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

In addition achieving good governance in the Council requires effective arrangements for:

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, environmental and cultural 
benefits

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 
outcomes 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals 
within it

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability

10 The diagram below brings together the above principles of good governance with the requirements of 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. It shows sustainable development as all-
encompassing. The core behaviours of:

 behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respecting the rule of law; and

   ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

need to be applied to the five ways of working outlined in the 2015 Act. These five ways of working 
have to permeate all segments of delivering outcomes which, in turn, should ensure effective use of 
resources as the Council maximises its contribution to the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Monmouthshire and Wales.

Page 27



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

11 The Authority’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the 
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010).

12 The key elements of the Council’s governance arrangements are set out in The Improvement Plan; 
the latest version, Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities  2016-2017, was approved by 
Council in May 2016.  Six monthly progress updates were presented to select committees during the 
year to enable scrutiny of progress and to allow Chief Officers and executive members to be held to 
account. The Council’s four priorities up to May 2017 when the local authority elections took place 
were :

education of young people, 
protecting the vulnerable, 

supporting business and job creation,
maintaining locally accessible services.  

Page 28



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

13 The Council subscribes to a vision shared with other public service partners as part of the Public 
Service Board of working to deliver  ‘Sustainable resilient communities’. This is the cornerstone of the 
County’s Single Integrated Plan  2013 -2017 where three themes have been adopted: 

Nobody is Left Behind
People are Confident, Capable and Involved

 Our County Thrives.

14 The Corporate Business Plan “22 for 22” approved by Council in January 2018 set out the Council’s 
new priorities to 2022, aligned with the well-being objectives of the PSB:

Best possible start in life
Thriving and connected communities

Natural and built environments
Lifelong wellbeing

Future focused council

15 In April 2016 the Local Service Board became the Public Service Board or PSB. As part of the 
requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Public Service Board are 
focused on improving social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing, in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle. Public Service Boards have a planning responsibility to prepare 
and publish an assessment of local well-being, produce a local well-being plan by May 2018 and 
report annually on its progress

Review of Effectiveness

16 The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed 
by the work of the Senior Leadership Team within the Authority which has responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual 
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates. 

17 The governance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the 
governance framework.

18 The processes that have been applied to maintain, review and improve the effectiveness of the 
governance framework include:

i) The Monitoring Officer has reviewed the Council’s Constitution and ethical 
governance arrangements during the year.  The constitution was revised and 
approved by Council in December 2017;

ii) periodic reviews of the financial controls including the financial procedure rules by 
the Chief Finance Officer (Head of Finance); financial procedure rules were 
approved by Council in September 2014;

iii) Revisions and updates to strengthen the strategic risk Management Policy were 
approved by Cabinet in March 2018;

iv) Formal risk management and regular ongoing review of the processes involved;
v) Scrutiny Service Plan 2016-2017; Scrutiny has conducted a Self-evaluation and Peer 

Review with several other councils during Spring 2017 as part of our ongoing 
commitment to continuous improvement;

vi) Scrutiny reports its annual appraisal and Scrutiny Service Plan to Audit Committee to 
satisfy them that the Council’s arrangements are working effectively;

vii) the Internal Audit function, whose work takes account of identified risks through 
regular audits of the major systems, establishments and major projects in 
accordance with the annual internal audit plan, and which includes ‘follow-up’ work to 
ensure that agreed recommendations are implemented;Page 29



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

viii) the work of the Council’s  Select and other Committees, including  its Audit and 
Standards committees; 

ix) the opinions and recommendations of the Council’s external auditors, following both 
financial audit work and per the Local Government Measure in regard to matters, 
including governance issues, which are considered for action and implementation 
and reported to Council, Cabinet and Audit Committee, as appropriate;

x) The opinions and recommendations of other inspection, regulation and review 
agencies which are reported to Council, Cabinet and Audit Committee as 
appropriate.  Audit Committee receives a regular report on the progress made with 
recommendations and proposals issued by Wales Audit Office

xi) regular monitoring of performance against the Improvement Plan and service plans 
and of key targets, and reporting of this to senior management and members;

xii) Audit Committee annual report;
xiii) Evaluating the effectiveness of Safeguarding in Monmouthshire was taken through 

Cabinet;
xiv) Annual appraisal of the effectiveness of the authority’s performance management 

arrangements reported annually to Audit Committee.

19 The following paragraphs review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in Monmouthshire 
under the 7 principles.  

Principle A:  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law

20 The code of conduct for members and a protocol on member / officer relations are set out in the 
constitution.  A new version of the code of conduct for members was adopted by Council in May 2016. 
The council also has a local protocol for the self-regulation of member conduct.

21 The Standards Committee, which includes a majority of independent representatives, advises on and 
monitors the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Protocol for Member/Officer Relations, and any other 
Codes relating to the conduct of Members.  

22 Agreed arrangements enable the Council to comply with statutory requirements in respect of child 
protection and the protection of vulnerable adults. Recruitment procedures help ensure that Council 
employees and Members working with children or vulnerable adults are checked for their suitability to 
do so.

23 In accordance with its statutory responsibilities, the Council has in place a Health and Safety Policy 
and related procedures.

24 There were no successful “call-in” challenges to decisions on procedural grounds and no judicial 
review challenges on grounds of legality during the year.

25 Policy and decision-making is facilitated through (i) the Cabinet, the meetings of which are open to the 
public and live steamed on YouTube except where exempt or confidential matters are being 
discussed, and (ii) a scheme of delegation to committees and officers as set out in the Constitution: 
Five select committees (including the statutory PSB Select Committee) and a separate audit 
committee review, scrutinise and hold to account the performance of the Cabinet, decision-making 
committees and officers. A Scrutiny “Call-In” process for decisions which have been made but not yet 
implemented is incorporated in the Constitution in order to consider their appropriateness.

26 A Scrutiny and Executive Protocol is in place which is aligned to the updated constitution of 
September 2014 and provides parameters for effective executive and scrutiny relationships.

Page 30



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

27 The Constitution is updated periodically by the Monitoring Officer; it was reviewed and updated during 
2017/18, and approved by Council in December 2017; it continues to be reviewed. It can be found on 
the Council’s website and sets out:

 how the Council operates and makes decisions, 
 the procedures to ensure that decision-making is transparent and accountable to 

local people and other stakeholders, 
 the key roles of all members and chief officers, including the lead responsibilities for 

corporate governance of the Leader, the Chief Executive and other designated chief 
officers,

 a scheme of delegated powers for decision-taking
 responsibilities for reviewing and agreeing the Council’s corporate governance 

arrangements,
 arrangements for ensuring it is regularly reviewed and updated
 its related codes and protocols.

28 To ensure agreed procedures and all applicable statutes are complied with the Monitoring Officer 
attends all Council meetings; to ensure sound financial management is a key factor in decisions, the 
Head of Finance attends Cabinet and Council meetings.  

29 The ethical governance framework includes:

 codes of conduct for officers and members
 a protocol governing Member/Officer relations, 
 a whistle-blowing policy widely communicated within the Council and which is 

regularly reviewed [ reviewed and approved by Cabinet June 2017]
 registers of personal and business interests for Members 
 an agreed policy and associated corporate procedures for ensuring that complaints 

about services can be properly made and investigated, and for ensuring that any 
lessons can be applied.

 equalities awareness training

30 In accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act, 1989, the Monitoring Officer ensures 
compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. After appropriate consultation, 
this officer will report to the full Council in respect of any proposals, decisions or omissions which 
could be unlawful or which have been subject of an Ombudsman Investigation resulting in a finding of 
maladministration

31 All exemptions of the Contract Procedure Rules are reported through Audit Committee six monthly.  
The Internal Audit team continues to deliver awareness raising sessions on the importance of 
compliance with these Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules.

32 The Audit Committee called in several senior managers during the year and challenged them on why 
a procurement process went outside the Council’s normal tendering processes. 

33 37 Internal Audit opinions were issued in 2017/18; 8 audit jobs resulted in Limited assurance. 

34 The overall opinion on the adequacy of the internal control environment for 2017/18 was 
REASONABLE.  Management agreed to implement the recommendations made in audit reports in 
order to address the weaknesses identified.  The Internal Audit opinions issued in 2017/18 were 
revised during 2016/17 to reflect the level of assurance gained from the audit review and were as 
follows; more detail can be found in the Annual Internal Outturn Report for 2017/18, as reported to 
Audit Committee:

Page 31



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

35 Reasons why the outcome of the audit reviews which were deemed to provide Limited assurance 
were presented in a separate report to Audit Committee which has sought assurances from respective 
operational managers that action will be taken to make the necessary improvements in control.

36 The Internal Audit team had a full complement of staff for the full year; 82% of the 2017/18 plan was 
achieved, which was an improvement on the previous year (75%).  The Chief Internal Auditor’s overall 
audit opinion is based on the number of audits undertaken and their individual opinions; he was able 
to give an overall opinion on the adequacy of the control environment.

37 The Internal Audit team undertook a self assessment during the year to assess its compliance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). This was further validated through a peer review 
process undertaken by the Chief Internal Auditor for Neath Port Talbot Council; the outcome of which 
was that the team are generally compliant, the highest level of compliance.

38 An Improvement Framework is in place to ensure the economic, effective and efficient use of 
resources and for securing continuous improvement. This is supported by a range of mechanisms 
including collaborative working initiatives and reviews undertaken both internally and by the external 
auditors and inspectors.  This framework works in conjunction with the Local Government Wales 
Measure 2009. 

39 Chief Officers and Heads of Service are accountable for ensuring that the Council Priorities are 
delivered, and performance against key targets is regularly monitored via the performance 
management framework and is regularly reported to members via Select Committees. 

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

40 The agendas are published in advance of all meetings on the Council’s website.

41 The Scrutiny reports on recommendations/outcomes from scrutiny activity are presented to Cabinet 
quarterly. The scrutiny function has a ‘Scrutiny Service Improvement Plan’.  The plan is built into the 
Council’s improvement framework.  The plan is also scrutinised by the Council’s Audit Committee 
annually to ensure they are satisfied that the Council has appropriate and effective scrutiny 
arrangements in place.

42 The Scheme of Delegation sets out responsibilities for decision making.  The Council’s website 
includes the Cabinet and Cabinet Member decisions / Member profiles. The Scrutiny Handbook 
provides a guide for Members, officers and the public on the role and value of scrutiny and the website 
displays the Scrutiny Forward Work Programme and invites public submissions. Development of 
Customer Insight to better understand our communities.  Dissemination of ward meeting minutes.

43 Social media, Twitter and Facebook for example, is increasingly being used to engage local people 
and communicate the corporate message.  The Council has partnered with an IT supplier to develop 
Monmouthshire Made Open – a digital engagement platform to enable local people to help shape 
ideas to the challenges facing their communities.  Scrutiny now has a Twitter account to help engage 
more effectively with the public on democracy.

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Substantial Assurance
(Very Good)

0 3 2

Considerable Assurance
(Good)

9 10 11

Reasonable Assurance 14 7 16
Limited Assurance
(Unsatisfactory)

3 7 8

Total 26 27 37

Page 32



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

44 There were several public engagement events undertaken in 2016/17 and 2017/18 for the budget.  
MCC’s model of engagement in understanding its communities’ views and the way it now operates as 
an organisation was shared with many delegates at a Welsh sustainability conference as exemplar.  
The  Council has encouraged the community within Monmouthshire to actively contribute to making 
stepped changes to improve the way in which services are provided and is a key workstream of the 
Future Monmouthshire programme established by the Council in May 2016; the intention is to 
transform public service delivery.  This links back to the principles of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act which sets out five ways of working including involvement. 

45 Monmouthshire Public Service Board has produced its Well-being Assessment for the county in March 
2017. This will help to shape the future of the area and its communities by informing the Public Service 
Board’s Well- being plan which will be subject to a prolonged consultation period. The assessment 
draws together findings from data, academic research and policy papers and the views of local 
people. The views of local people were gathered as part of an extensive community engagement 
exercise to test whether the data reflected peoples’ lived experiences – this was called Our 
Monmouthshire. 

46 Transparency and openness is important to Monmouthshire; the Annual Statement of Accounts was 
taken through the Audit Committee process before being endorsed by Council.  All Council decisions, 
reports and questions asked by Members are available on the website.  Financial information, 
Improvement Plan progress, Council activities, achievements, developments, updates and events 
were included on the Council’s intranet and website, with all Council, Cabinet and Scrutiny 
Committees now live streamed on You Tube. 

47 All public meetings of the Council are live streamed on YouTube and are available to view on the 
Council’s YouTube channel at any time after the meeting, which provides greater transparency of the 
Council’s business.  The Council, Cabinet, Audit Committee, Select Committees and Planning / 
Licensing Committees are streamed live on the internet. 

48 Individual Cabinet Members can make decisions under the scheme of delegation; agendas and 
decisions for all Cabinet Members are published on the Council’s website.

49 The Council’s website contains links to the following areas in the interests of openness.

 Data Protection
 Freedom of Information (FoI)
 Equality and diversity and the Equality Act, 2010
 Monmouthshire and the Welsh Language
 Policies, Plans and Procedures
 Council Performance
 Budget and Spending
 Public Service Board (PSB)
 Cardiff Capital Region City Deal
 The Well-being of Future Generations Act
 Complaints, Comments, Feedback and Compliment
 Our Monmouthshire

50 The Council has received a number of Freedom of Information Act requests during the year, with no 
complaints made to the Information Commission Officer.  97% of requests were responded to within 
the required 20 days:

2015-16 2016-17 2017/18
Page 33

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/home/local-democracy-and-councillors/data-protection
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/home/local-democracy-and-councillors/freedom-of-information
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/equality-and-diversity
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/monmouthshire-welsh-language
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/home/local-democracy-and-councillors/policies-and-procedures
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/improvement
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/home/local-democracy-and-councillors/budget-and-spending
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/psb
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/cardiff-capital-region-city-deal
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/feedback
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire


ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

51 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) supports the vision for Monmouthshire and extensive public 
engagement continued in 2017/18 for the 2018/19 budget and Medium Term Financial Plan which 
engaged with the public in their own community; this included website, social media, drop in sessions 
and open meeting. The Chief Executive and Leader of the Council also held consultation roadshows 
across the whole County with staff.  These were key to providing people with the opportunity to 
become informed.

52 The Improvement Plan, Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities, 2016-17 involved a public 
consultation which took place between 1st April – 22nd April 2016. 

53 During 2017/18 the Public Service Board (PSB) agendas and minutes were published online on the 
MCC website to ensure transparency.

54 Public engagement and consultation is key to the WFG Act.  One of the five ways of working is 
Involvement - the importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves.  This along with 
the other ways of working is now considered in all relevant decision making reports for Cabinet and 
Council  through a Future Generations Evaluation which includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact 
Assessments.  The progress of implementing the WFG Act was reported through the Audit Committee 
in July 2017.

55 Implementing Open Government standards which enable us to effectively engage with our citizens 
and open up our data for anyone who needs to use it.  Making the most of digitisation and digital 
inclusion to enable us to engage with people across our County.

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, environmental and 
cultural benefits

56 The Council’s Improvement Plan for 2016/17, Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities, was 
approved by Council in May 2016.  This plan outlines the council’s responsibility to publish its 
Improvement Objectives in line with the plans for the year ahead as outlined in section 15(7) of the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and shows how the council is delivering the 7 aspects of 
improvement. 

57 The Single Integrated Plan sets out the vision of the Public Service Board – a partnership of the key 
public service providers in Monmouthshire which includes the Council – it has three key themes; 
nobody is left behind, people are confident, capable and involved; and our County thrives.    It is 
developed by and agreed by all our partner organisations who are members of the Board. The PSB is 
using the evidence in the well-being assessment to develop its well-being plan by March 2018. This 
plan will replace the Single Integrated Plan. Currently the partnerships are more focussed on 
emerging issues and key issues identified in the wellbeing assessment and responding to them 
collectively as a partnership, as well as fulfilling statutory duties.

No’ of FOI requests 
closed

1057 1055

No’ responded to within 
20 days

1034 1022

Percentage of FOIs 
responded to within 20 
days

98% 97%

[Target of 90%]

Page 34



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

58 The Council’s strategic partners and wider stakeholders were fully engaged in the development of the 
Single Integrated Plan 2013-17 (SIP) incorporating key themes and outcomes to realise the shared 
vision.  The organisation’s Stage 1 Improvement Plan underpins the Council’s contribution to the SIP 
by setting Annual Improvement Objectives for 2016/17.    The Stage 2 Improvement Plan was 
presented to Council in September 2017 which reviewed Council performance in the previous financial 
(2016/17)  and included an evaluation of how well it delivered against the objectives set by Council.

59 Under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 The Council has a responsibility to:

• Set and publish well-being objectives
• Take all reasonable steps to meet those objectives
• Publish a statement about well-being objectives
• Detail arrangements to publish an annual report of progress

60 In March 2018 Council approved the Council’s Well-being Plan and endorsed the Area plan.. The well-
being objectives set bring together the latest evidence from the well-being assessment, policy and 
legislation and show how the council will strive to deliver a public service that meets the needs of the 
present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. The Council is 
also required under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 to set annual Improvement 
Objectives and produce an Improvement Plan, the wellbeing objectives meet this duty. The Council’s 
well-being objectives, as agreed in March 2017, are: 

 Provide children and young people with the best possible start in life to help them achieve 
better outcomes

 Maximise the potential in our communities to improve well-being for people throughout their 
life course

 Maximise the benefits of the natural and built environment for the well-being of current and 
future generations  

 Develop opportunities for communities and businesses to ensure a well-connected and 
thriving county

61 The Annual Improvement Plan Objectives for 2016/17 are supported by service plans to   operationally 
deliver these objectives. Planned improvements and targets are aligned to the Annual Improvement 
Objectives.  Service plans were developed in 2017/18 covering all service areas and were updated 
quarterly and made available on the Council’s Hub.  These were quality assessed as part of the 
service planning process.

62 In July 2017 Wales Audit Office provided an update to Audit Committee on its Proposals for 
Improvement. The proposals came out of pervious reports and were categorised across governance, 
performance management, HR, Finance and partnership / collaboration working. There were 18 open 
proposals and 6 closed proposals; the Council is working through the open proposals.

63 Reports were taken through the Scrutiny process during the year which linked service plans to the 
Council’s policies, priorities and objectives.  The agendas and minutes of which became public 
documents available through the Council’s website.  

64 In 2015/16 the Council was an early adopter of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act which came 
into effect in April 2016.  Preparation included increased awareness raising with Council members and 
officers. Extensive work continued in 2016/17 to implement the act including training sessions and 
developing the Well-being assessment in partnership with PSB partners this was endorsed by Council 
and approved by the Public Service Board (PSB) in March 2017. 

65 The Council is embracing the benefits of digital communications including social media use. It is also 
developing additional digital channels by introducing a Customer Services app, enabling people to 
interact and transact with the Council using mobile devices. We are also further developing the 
Council’s website making it easier to navigate and including more transactional functions. Social 
media continues to thrive during 2017/18 through Twitter, Facebook and You Tube to raise awareness 
of forthcoming events, to provide live streaming of Cabinet, Council and other political meetings, to 
promote the activities and services provided and to show support and encouragement for community 
groups.

Page 35



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

66 Enhancing the digital services with economic (effective and efficient processes aiding business 
interaction), environmental (less travel and print consumables) and social (digital customer centric 
services). Measured via the Digital Programme Office Service plan and performance planning 
process.

67 To ensure the best use is made of resources and that taxpayers and service users receive excellent 
value for money, there are a number of mechanisms within the Council to support this.  The option 
appraisals for the 21st Century Schools considered cost and quality to determine the best outcome for 
the service; budget mandates were in place to monitor and capture the savings assessments; the IT 
Board reviewed business cases for future IT investment.

68 Regular budget / outturn reports for revenue and capital were presented to and approved by Cabinet 
during the year, and the budget management actions of Cabinet and senior officers are scrutinized by 
4 of the Select committees quarterly.  The budget monitoring reporting cycle periodically contains 
some output measures and unit cost data, so that economic comparison of costs with other Councils 
can be made.  Previously the Council has compared very favourably to others.  The updated MTFP 
was reviewed and approved by Cabinet over the course of the budget setting period (Sept 2016 to Jan 
2017) in response to feedback from engagement and scrutiny sessions and the budget was set in 
January 2018 by Council for 2018/19.  Ongoing scrutiny of the Council’s budget position in line with 
the MTFP has provided members with a greater understanding of the budget setting process and the 
pressures within individual directorates.

69 An authority-wide performance measurement system for the Council, the “data hub”, hosted on the 
Council’s intranet site continues to be used and further developed. This is available within 3 clicks of 
the homepage that opens up on all laptops and enables members and officers to track and monitor 
key data at any point in time from key strategic plans to directorate level “dashboards”. This also 
allows performance to be compared against other council areas, where applicable. A Cabinet level 
dashboard contains a number of key performance measures and is discussed quarterly by SLT and 
Cabinet.

70 Based on 2016/17 National Performance indicator data the council has seen service performance 
improve, or remain at the maximum level, in 45% of comparable indicators.  When comparing against 
other local authorities Monmouthshire was ranked in the top or upper middle quartiles for 60% of its 
targets. Comparable National Performance indicator data for 2017/18 will be available in September 
2018. 

71 The Council utilises ‘Buy For Wales’ contracts to ensure value for money is obtained in procuring the 
many goods and services required to run the Council.  A nationwide analysis found that MCC had the 
highest proportion of spend with SMEs of any local authority in the UK 
(Source:http://www.spendsmall.org/)

72 The Equality Impact Assessment and Sustainable Development checklist have been revised and 
combined to align with the Future Generations Act.  The “Future Generations Evaluation “   ensures 
the decisions the Council makes are carefully considered to take equality and sustainable 
development into account, this includes legislation that Monmouthshire County Council is subject to 
the Equality Act 2010, Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 
2011.  A range of these were undertaken during 2016/17 which have been published on the website 
accompanying decision making reports.  

73 The Wales Audit Office (WAO) presented its Annual Improvement Plan 2016/17 to Audit Committee in 
September 2017; the overall conclusion was that the Council is likely to meet its statutory 
requirements in relation to continuous improvement providing it responds constructively and in a timely 
way to WAO’s statutory recommendations. 

74 The WAO reported on their follow on review from the Governance Corporate Assessment made in 
2015, through Audit Committee in July 2017. They concluded that the Council has a clear strategic 
approach for significant changes, although, better information would help Members when deciding the 
future shape of the Council. Page 36



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

 

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 
outcomes 

75 The Local Authority is a partner in the South East Wales Consortium Schools Causing Concern 
protocol. This Policy forms a part of, and is aligned with, the National Model for School Improvement in 
relation to the informal support and challenge provided by the Local Authority (LA) to a school prior to 
any issuing of a warning notice or invocation of formal powers of intervention based on the six grounds 
for intervention. It also aligns with the Welsh Government (WG) Guidance on Schools Causing 
Concern (March 2016).

76 Contract Procedure Rules exemptions are reported to the Audit Committee 6 monthly; managers have 
been challenged in year to justify their procurement outside the Council agreed procedures.  Several 
managers were called in to Audit Committee to give an account of why accepted procedures were not 
followed.

77 Regular reporting into Cabinet, Scrutiny and Audit Committee enables the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives to be challenged and appropriate action plans put in place to address any 
identified issues so that the intended outcomes can be achieved.  The Improvement Objectives and 
Performance indicators - 2016/17 were taken through Select Committees six monthly. The Strategic 
Risk Assessment 2016 was also taken through Select Committee, Audit Committee and signed off by 
Cabinet during the year.

78 Dealing with customer complaints helps Monmouthshire to identify and deal with failures in service 
delivery.  The Council’s complaint / compliment procedure is available on the web site. Out of 87 
complaints received in 2017/18, 74 were resolved informally although 1 complaint was referred to the 
Ombudsman, who decided not to investigate.  13 formal complaints were received, 2 of which were 
escalated.  123 comments were received along with 189 compliments.  

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it

79 The Council’s recruitment procedures provide equality of employment opportunities. The equality-
assessed pay structure meets the requirements of the Single Status Agreement of 1997.  The Single 
Status Collective Agreement was approved by Cabinet in September 2010.

80 Developing the digital capabilities of people and systems to enable effectiveness, efficiency and 
enhanced customer services ( measured via the Digital Programme SIP)

81 There is continued support for Members’ development through briefing sessions and other learning 
opportunities.  A comprehensive training programme was developed for the intake of new members 
following Council elections in May 2017 including:

Council Induction Licensing Audit
Planning Scrutiny Children & Young People
Finance Governance Safeguarding
Security at Events Equalities

82 There is also ongoing training and development which meets the needs of officers and members 
through the corporate programme.  Coaching and leadership skills training will be rolled out to all 
managers in due course. Check in, Check Out provides a value-based performance assessment 

Page 37



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

approach between staff and line managers and aims to ensure employees have clear and effective 
understanding of their contribution to the objectives of their teams and subsequently the Council.

83 Scrutiny Member Development programme is in place which provides ongoing specific skills based 
training for Members and includes scrutiny induction.

84 Appropriate and relevant job descriptions were in place for the Chief Executive, Senior Leadership 
Team (SLT), Monitoring Officer and Head of Finance.  

Partnerships/collaboration working

85 There is Council policy on information sharing along with numerous information sharing protocols with 
our partners; this is included within the Data Protection Policy.  Information sharing is key to joined-up 
service delivery. The Wales Accord on the Sharing of Personal Information (WASPI) was developed 
as a practical approach to multi agency sharing for the public sector in Wales, and Monmouthshire 
signed up to this in January 2011.  The Authority is required to meet statutory obligations regarding 
the handling and sharing of data, in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 and more recently, 
the General Data Protection Regulation 2018. The Information Sharing protocol has been developed 
to ensure information is only shared appropriately, safely and compliantly. 

86 The Council ensures that it has appropriate governance arrangements around its collaborations with 
other public agencies and other third parties.  These can take a range of forms, from informal 
arrangements to those where governance arrangements are determined through legislation.  The 
governance arrangements form a key part of the decision making processes that the Cabinet or 
Council follow when deciding to enter a collaborative arrangement, transparent local accountability is a 
key area of focus.

87 As a key example of our commitment to effective governance, arrangements have been developed for 
the PSB Select Committee.

88 An exercise was undertaken in 2013/14 to determine the full extent of the Council’s collaboration and 
partnership arrangements and their respective governance arrangements.  A Partnership Audit was 
undertaken and reported into the Audit Committee in May 2014; 100 partnership / collaboration 
arrangements were identified. Although the governance arrangements for the majority of partnerships 
identified have been captured, further work is on-going to clarify the governance arrangements for all 
of the partnerships; this was be reported to Members through the Audit Committee. Governance 
arrangements have been put in place around all key partnerships the Council is involved with.  
Monmouthshire’s Partnership Structure is now shown on The Hub and was reported through Strong 
Communities Select in April 2016.

89 Wales Audit Office made a proposal for improvement to the Council as part of their Annual 
Improvement Report 2014-15, published in November 2015, to “Adopt a more planned, risk-assessed 
approach to partnership and collaborative working to make better use of resources.” The action the 
Council is taking in response to the proposal was reported to Cabinet in January 2016.  A community 
governance review was undertaken to improve community engagement.

90 Their Corporate Assessment on the Council, reported through Audit Committee in January 2016, 
stated “The Council demonstrates ambition in its vision, enthusiasm to deliver and commitment to 
working collaboratively, but this needs to be supported by a clearly joined-up strategic approach and 
effective delivery mechanisms.” In May 2016 Cabinet agreed to commission a strategic programme of 
whole-authority work called ‘Future Monmouthshire’. Future Monmouthshire will identify shifts and 
changes needed in Monmouthshire and position the council as the key enabler in bringing them about. 
It will inform the development of a new business model for the council in order to equip it to meet its 
goals amidst increasing change and uncertainty. The new model will help inform planning for any 
further partnership and collaborative working.

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 
financial management

Page 38



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

91 There are robust arrangements for effective financial control through the Council’s accounting 
procedures and financial regulations.  These include established budget planning procedures, which 
are subject to risk assessment, and regular reports to members comparing actual revenue and capital 
expenditure to annual budgets.  The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the proper administration 
of the Council’s financial affairs, as required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.  
Procedures for tendering and contract letting are included in the Contract Procedure Rules and 
Financial Regulations.  The Council’s Treasury Management arrangements follow professional 
practice, are subject to regular review and are contained in the Treasury Management Strategy 
approved by Council each year.

92 Wales Audit Office made a proposal for improvement to the Council as part of their Annual 
Improvement Report 2014-15, published in November 2015, to “Strengthen the governance and 
challenge arrangements by: ensuring that minutes of meetings are signed at the next suitable meeting 
in accordance with the Council’s constitution to improve timeliness and transparency of public 
reporting; and reconsider the Council’s policy of not formally minuting Cabinet meetings”.  All agendas 
are published in advance on the Council’s website and the Cabinet meetings are live streamed.

93 In May 2016 Wales Audit Office published its review of the Council’s progress to improve its 
governance arrangements by seeking to answer the following question: ‘Is the Council effectively 
addressing issues raised in the 2015 Corporate Assessment and its own Scrutiny Action Plan to 
improve governance?’ The report concluded that the Council has made progress in improving its 
governance arrangements although more work is needed to strengthen the transparency of decision 
making and recording.  In July 2017 Wales Audit Office reported to Audit Committee that the “Council 
has a clear strategic approach for significant service changes, although better information would help 
Members when deciding the future shape of the Council”.

94 The most recent update on the action the Council is taking in response to the proposal was reported to 
Audit Committee in July 2017. This identified progress made which the ‘Modern Gov’ system has been 
implemented and improved the documentation of minutes, agendas and reports for meetings on the 
Council’s website, with further implementation of the system planned. Work is ongoing training report 
writers to implement improvements and senior officer accountability. A decision-log of Cabinet 
meetings is published on the website following each Cabinet meeting detailing the decisions that have 
been which include any amendments made to the proposed decision. Not publishing minutes for 
Cabinet has been a longstanding practice of the Council which has raised no issues of transparency 
and openness in the decision making process and the Council does not have any plans to change this 
process for recording decisions at Cabinet.

95 The anti-fraud, bribery and corruption strategy was revised and updated during 2017/18.  It was 
approved by Cabinet July 2017 and provides a deterrent, promotes detection, identifies a clear 
pathway for investigation and encourages prevention. The Council’s Council Tax Reduction Anti-Fraud 
Policy was approved by Cabinet in June 2015.

96 The Audit Committee considers the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for securing 
continuous improvement including risk management arrangements.  The Audit Committee also 
considers corporate governance, monitors the work of auditors and inspectors, and monitors the 
relationships between auditors and staff and the responses to audit and inspection recommendations. 
It also has responsibility for reviewing the Annual Statement of Accounts and its associated reports 
(which include this statement) before approval by Council.  The Audit Committee has an independent, 
non-political, Chairman who prepares an annual report of the work of the Audit Committee.

97 Internal Audit operate to the standards set out in the ‘Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards’ which 
have been developed from the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Internal Auditing 
Standards which came into effect in April 2013.  The team’s role and status is set out in the Council’s 
Internal Audit Charter.   The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee a summary of audit 
findings for each quarter, and also reports annually an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment.  

98 The Chief Internal Auditor will ensure Internal Audit complies with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards.  A self assessment was undertaken during 2017/18 to assess compliance with the 

Page 39



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Standards which was validated in March 2018 by an external assessor, the Chief Internal Auditor of 
Neath Port Talbot Council.  The outcome of which was that the Internal Audit team is generally 
complaint, the highest level of compliance.

99 The Council has an objective and professional relationship with its external auditors and statutory 
inspectors.

100 Managing our information resource through strategies and policies to enable effective decision  
making  which is managed via the draft information strategy and action plan.

Risk management

101 The Council’s Strategic Risk Management Policy was updated and approved by Cabinet in March 
2018. The revisions provide greater clarity on how the risk levels are to be assessed. The policy 
requires the proactive participation of all those responsible for  planning and delivering services in 
identifying, evaluating and managing high level strategic  risks to the Council’s priorities, services and 
major projects. The risk controls necessary to manage them are identified and monitored to ensure 
risk mitigation.

102 Within the Council the purpose of risk management is to:

• preserve and protect the Council’s assets, reputation and staff
• aid good management of risk and support whole authority governance
• aid delivery of it’s population outcomes internally and when working with partners 
• improve business performance and anticipated risks in delivering improvements 
• avoid unnecessary liabilities, costs and failures
• shape procedures and responsibilities for implementation.

The strategic risk assessment ensures that:

 Strategic risks are identified and monitored by the Authority
 Risk controls are appropriate and proportionate
 Senior managers and elected members systematically review the strategic risks facing the 

Authority.

The risk assessment is prepared by drawing on a wide range of evidence including service plans, 
performance measures, regulatory reports, progress on the previous risk assessment and the views 
of select committees. In order to mitigate the risks, proposed action was recorded and factored 
back into the respective service improvement plan.  The risk assessment is a living document and 
is updated over the course of the year as new information comes to light. The Strategic Risk 
Assessment in 2016 was also taken through Select Committee, audit committee and signed off by 
Cabinet during the year.

103 The Council’s Strategic Risk Assessment for 2017/18 contains 16 distinct risks. Following the revised 
policy these were updated and reviewed throughout the year with the latest version being made 
available to members via The Hub. 

Ref Risk Year Risk Level (Pre 
– mitigation)

Risk Level (Post – 
mitigation)

1 The authority does not remain relevant and viable for 
future generations due to not having a sustainable 
delivery model.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Low

Low 

Low
2 Without appropriate and effective governance 

infrastructure the Council may not deliver its objectives.
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Low 

Low

Page 40



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

3 The Council and partners do not make sufficient 
progress to improve well-being through regional and 
partnership working.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Low
4 Some services may become financially unsustainable in 

the short  to medium term
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Low

Low

Low
5 The authority is unable to deliver its political priorities 

due to insufficient capital funding availability which may 
also lead to risks of maintaining key infrastructure and 
other identified pressures.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

High

Medium

Medium

Medium
6 Our workforce is not sufficiently resourced and does not 

have the right mix of skills which impacts our ability to 
deliver change, improve performance and deliver our 
objectives.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium
7 Significant harm to vulnerable children or adults due to 

failure of safeguarding arrangements
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium
8 The robust delivery of the Council’s corporate parenting 

responsibility and services related to safeguarding 
vulnerable children as a result of an increase in demand 
and complexity in cases in Children’s services.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Low
9 Failure to meet the needs of  vulnerable learners may 

result in them not achieving their full potential
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Low
10 Information security breaches due to mismanagement 

of information or external parties gaining access to the 
network could result in critical and sensitive data being 
lost, compromising the delivery or availability of Council 
services and the interaction with external agencies and 
partners.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

11 Not adequately transitioning to the requirements of the 
General Data Protection Regulation resulting in 
reputational damage and risk of fines to the Council

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Low
12 Major disruption to services due to the transfer of the 

Council’s email and skype to Office 365.
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Low

Low

Low

Low
13 A lack of appropriate infrastructure in the County to 

meet future needs due to key Local Development Plan 
housing policy targets not being met, in conjunction with 
the County’s changing demography and other external 
changes such as Severn Bridge tolls and this impact on 
the housing market.  These factors can also impact on 
planning for other infrastructure such as transport and 
energy. 
 

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Low

14 Insufficient ICT infrastructure and skills in the county 
have the potential to lead to social and economic 
disadvantages

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Page 41



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

15 Political, legislative and financial uncertainty for council 
services and local businesses as a result of Britain 
leaving the European Union.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

High

High

High

High

High

High
16 The authority cannot deliver its services due to potential 

internal/external factors – resulting in service disruption 
due to lack of Business Continuity planning.

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Medium 

Medium 

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability

104 The South East Wales Education Achievement Service (EAS) Business Plan 2018-2020 was 
presented to Cabinet in March 2018. The plan sets out the priorities, programmes and outcomes to be 
achieved by the EAS on behalf of the South East Wales Consortium.

105 An update of progress for 2015/16 and the plan for 2016-17 for the People and Organisational 
Development Strategy 2014-17 was presented to Cabinet in April 2016.  This was approved by 
Council in April 2015 and remains true to its core purpose in meeting the rapidly changing demands 
placed on its workforce.  The comprehensive progress report summarised the outcomes achieved in 
2015/16 as well as the next steps in delivering a coherent and cohesive People Services offer to the 
organisation.

106 The iCounty Strategy Business Plan for 2016/19, along with a report on MCC’s Digital and Technology 
service and how it aligns with MCC’s iCounty, People and Place strategies was also presented to 
Cabinet in April 2016.  The plan supports the 3 pillars of iCounty: 

a) Improving internal services, data delivery and infrastructure 
b) Digitally enabled, inclusive and connected communities 
c) Creating products and commercial assets 

107 The Business Plan also aligns with the People, Asset Management, MTFP and SRS strategies as well 
as linking in with MCC’s Business and Service Improvement Plans.

108 Cabinet were presented with an overview of the performance of the whole authority safeguarding 
2015/16 in July 2016 along with the proposed changes to the whole authority safeguarding approach.

109 The Audit Committee continues to support the Internal Audit team and endorses its annual report and 
plan.  The plan details the work and service areas the team will cover based on a risk assessment in 
order to provide assurance on the adequacy of the internal controls, governance arrangements and 
risk management process. 

110 The Whole Authority Report complaints, comments and compliments 2016/17 was presented to Audit 
Committee in January 2018 which identified the number and types of feedback received and dealt with 
from 1 April 2016 until 31 March 2017. The report also provided a summary of the number of Freedom 
of Information Act (FOI) requests received and dealt with by the Council during this period.

Information Governance

111 Monmouthshire County Council ( MCC) has been working through a “Dripping tap campaign” to raise 
awareness of and comply with the General Data Protection Regulation 25th May 2018- specifically 
following the “12 Steps to Compliance” as recommended by the Information Commissioner’s Office 
(ICO). SLT has been kept abreast with key risks and updates on behalf of the Information Governance 
Group chaired by Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) who meet regularly to ensure that MCC is on 

Page 42



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

track. GDPR Operational Leads have been established, along with Digital Champions linking in with 
teams, individuals and volunteers to ensure compliance and messages are communicated. Elected 
Members are data controllers in their own right and must register with the ICO. 

112 Activity undertaken to date includes: workshops, conference, focus groups, drop-in sessions including 
legal and procurement advice, HUB articles, online Quiz (186+ participated) all staff emails and face to 
face training (450+staff to date). MCC has also produced a short video introducing the key principles 
of GDPR A-F (200+ views), signposting where to find further information about compliance, all staff 
are to watch before 25th May 2018. GDPR is now introduced at Corporate and local inductions, to 
become embedded as a culture.

113 To provide tools to do the job, MCC have a dedicated GDPR website (over 2k visits to date) with 
templates (e.g. for privacy notices), charts (e.g. for establishing individual rights) and general advice/ 
updates on the regulation. There are 24 open and transparent service plans published internally on 
specific work stream actions being undertaken in following the brackets: Data collection and use, 
retention and disposal, systems and technology, security, governance, training/ awareness and staff 
data.

114 To keep the public informed, MCC looks to launch its online privacy notice library, which will host a 
comprehensive list of privacy notices that sit across the directorates/ teams. Services will also where 
appropriate pro-actively promote notices by way of email, newsletter, app notification, letter, printed 
display or web link. Privacy notices are to be reviewed by Services on a regular basis for accuracy 
along with other GDPR related documents (Such as Information Audit- “Systems List” and Data 
Protection Impact Assessments).

115 The Corporate GDPR Policy will be included on the public website for clarity. Related policies will be 
updated accordingly by relevant lead officers, so that they satisfy GDPR requirement. Links are in 
place to work with the South East Wales Information Forum (SWIF) on a regular basis to share best 
practice. Good housekeeping is encouraged as is continuous improvement to mitigating against the 
risk of harm to individuals, although it is recognised further work is required to back date data 
cleansing tasks which require considerable capacity.

Main areas for Improvement

116 The Council will continue to monitor and review its governance arrangements and identify any gaps.  
These will be addressed during the year to further strengthen governance in Monmouthshire County 
Council:  

 improve performance management arrangements and improve strategic planning; 
 continue to deliver awareness raising sessions on the importance of compliance with Contract 

Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules;
 Improve oversight and ongoing implementation of the staff appraisal process ‘Check In Check 

Out’ 
 Improve the clarity of reports that members receive to ensure  they have access to appropriate 

and timely information 
 Adopt a more planned, risk-assessed approach to partnership and collaborative working to 

make better use of resources.

Action Plan 2016/17

117 Appendix 1 shows how the 2016/17 Action plan areas for improvement have been addressed during 
2017/18.

118 An Action Plan for 2017/18 has been developed to capture known gaps in the Council’s governance 
arrangements; the areas for improvement will be reviewed and considered during 2018/19 to further 
enhance the Council’s governance arrangements.  This is shown at Appendix 2.Page 43



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Monitoring & Evaluation

119 We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements 
that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation 
as part of our next annual review.

 Signed: .............................................……………………………2018
Leader      

Signed: ……………………………....…………………………..…2018
Chief Executive

Page 44



Appendix 1
Main areas of improvement for 2016/17 addressed

The following Table outlines where the Council has addressed gaps previously 
identified in its governance arrangements:

Governance Principle Area for Improvement Progress

Principle F:

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal 
control and strong 
public financial 
management

Improve performance 
management arrangements 
and improve strategic 
planning 

The Corporate Plan sets out 
a clear direction for the 
Council up to 2022; the 
objectives of which will be 
measured over time using 
process, output and 
satisfaction measures.  
Target setting has been 
developed and incorporated 
within the business planning 
process.  Further training 
will be delivered via The 
Talent Lab.

Principle A:

Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to 
ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of 
law

Continue to deliver 
awareness raising sessions 
on the importance of 
compliance with Contract 
Procedure Rules and 
Financial Procedure Rules;

Training sessions have 
been provided for schools 
and school governors.  This 
programme needs to be 
expanded to cover all staff.

Principle E:

Developing the 
entity’s capacity, 
including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it

Improve oversight and 
ongoing implementation of 
the staff appraisal process 
‘Check In Check Out’ 

Process has been reviewed 
and rolled out with more 
robust guidance, video 
tutorials and supportive 
training.  A more effective 
recording module has been 
developed to enable 
information to be recorded 
directly into MYVIEW 
system.

Principle F:

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal 
control and strong 
public financial 
management

Improve the clarity of reports 
that Members receive to 
ensure  they have access to 
appropriate and timely 
information 

An evaluation assessment, 
option appraisal, 
consultation section have 
now been included within 
the decision making report 
template.  Greater 
accountability on senior 
officers for ensuring reports 
meet the required standard.

Principle E:

Developing the 
entity’s capacity, 

Adopt a more planned, risk-
assessed approach to 
partnership and collaborative 
working to make better use 

A community governance 
review has been completed, 
with new arrangements 
being piloted in one Area 

Page 45



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it

of resources. Committee.  The Whole 
Place and Strategic 
Partnership Teams have 
subsequently been merged 
into a single Partnership 
and Community 
Development Team in order 
to better align strategic 
intent and focus on building 
sustainable and resilient 
communities.

Page 46



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Appendix 2
Action Plan 2017/18

The following areas will be reviewed and considered during 2017/18 to further 
enhance the Council’s governance arrangements:

Governance Principle Area for Improvement Progress

Page 47



ANNUAL  GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Action Plan 2017/18

The following areas will be reviewed and considered during 2018/19 to further 
enhance the Council’s governance arrangements:

Governance Principle Area for Improvement Progress

Principle F:

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal 
control and strong 
public financial 
management

Principle A:

Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to 
ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of 
law

Principle E:

Developing the 
entity’s capacity, 
including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it

Principle F:

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal 
control and strong 
public financial 
management

Principle E:

Developing the 
entity’s capacity, 
including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it

Page 48


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Annual Complaints Report 2016/17
	Whole Authority Complaints Report 2016-2017 no names

	7 Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

